

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County

Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Financial Statements June 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditors' Report	1 - 2
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)	4 - 9
Basic Financial Statements	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	11
Statement of Activities	12
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds	14
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds	16
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	17
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	18 - 30
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund (Unaudited)	32
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Special Revenue Fund (Unaudited)	33
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Debt Service Fund (Unaudited)	34
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Capital Project Fund (Unaudited)	35
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	36 – 37
Information Required by Rules of the Florida Auditor General, Chapter 10.850, Charter School Audits	
Independent Auditors' Management Letter	38 – 39



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. New Port Richey, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. ("Pepin"), a component unit of the District School Board of Pasco County, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Pepin's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles general accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 9 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 32 through 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated August 31, 2020 on our consideration of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Prida Guida Perez P.A.

Frida Gaida & Feroz

Tampa, Florida

August 31, 2020

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) June 30, 2020

The following pages represent Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. ("Pepin" or "Charter School"). The MD&A depicts and reviews the financial picture and activities of Pepin as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The intent of this MD&A is to present a picture and assessment of Pepin's financial performance in an effort to more clearly demonstrate to readers the results of this year's financial operations. Readers should consider this MD&A along with the basic financial statements and the notes to the basic financial statements.

Using the Financial Statements

This financial report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of Pepin:

- The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide information about Pepin's overall financial status.
- The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of Pepin, reporting Pepin's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

The notes to the basic financial statements explain some of the information in the basic financial statements and provide more detail. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the basic financial statements.

This document also includes the independent auditors' report on compliance and internal control required by *Government Auditing Standards*, as well as the management letter required by the Rules of the Florida Auditor General.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about Pepin as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by the private sector. The statement of net position includes all of Pepin's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The first government-wide financial statement report Pepin's net position and the second reports how it has changed. Net position, the difference between Pepin's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure Pepin's financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in Pepin's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall financial position of Pepin, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in Pepin's student base funding level.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a self-balancing set of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Funds are used by Pepin to keep track of sources of funding and spending. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about Pepin's most significant funds, not Pepin as a whole.

Government funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the governmental funds utilize a spendable financial resources measurement focus rather that the economic resources measurement focus found in the government-wide financial statements. Pepin's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. This short-term view is useful when comparing with the long-term view presented as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. To facilitate this comparison, both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation of governmental funds to governmental activities.

Pepin maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and change in fund balances. The general fund, special revenue fund, debt service fund, and capital project fund are considered Pepin's major funds.

Pepin adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison schedule, as required, has been provided for Pepin's major funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Financial Highlights

- The year ended June 30, 2020 was the 7th year of operations for Pepin. Enrollment increased by 6 students from the prior year, to an end of year student count of 326, the School's capacity.
- On January 30, 2020, Pepin closed on the purchase of a property that will be its new permanent campus location. The property consists of approximately 14 acres of land and includes several buildings and structures. Proceeds from a series 2020 bonds issuance were loaned by the issuer to Pepin to finance the property acquisition, demolition of certain existing structures, renovation of other existing structures, and construction and equipping of three additional educational, administrative, and ancillary facilities on the site.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

• Net position decreased \$819,493 from \$498,894 at June 30, 2019 to \$(320,599) at June 30, 2020. The net decrease is composed of the following:

Net PositionGovernmental Activities

			Increase
	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019	(Decrease)
Assets			
Current	\$ 7,959,483	\$ 617,678	\$ 7,341,805
Capital assets, net	5,753,542	113,417	5,640,125
Total assets	\$ 13,713,025	\$ 731,095	\$ 12,981,930
Liabilities			
Current liabilities	\$ 1,699,357	\$ 232,201	\$ 1,467,156
Noncurrent liabilities	12,334,267		12,334,267
Total liabilities	14,033,624	232,201	13,801,423
Net position			
Net investment in capital assets	(908,038)	113,417	(1,021,455)
Restricted for debt service	1,294,552	-	1,294,552
Unrestricted	(707,113)	385,477	(1,092,590)
Total net position	(320,599)	498,894	(819,493)
Total liabilities and net position	\$ 13,713,025	\$ 731,095	\$ 12,981,930

Current assets consist of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and other current assets. Restricted cash represents funds that are restricted for future debt service and project construction requirements under the terms of the revenue bond agreement. Capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation and consist of land; buildings and land improvements; leasehold improvements; furniture, fixtures, and equipment; and construction in progress. Current liabilities consist of accounts payable, accrued construction costs, accrued payroll, accrued interest, and accrued other expenses, while non-current liabilities consist of notes payable and revenue bonds payable.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Changes in Pepin's net position for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are shown in the table below:

Change in Net Position

	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
	G	overnmental Activi	ities				
	Year Ended	Year Ended	Increase				
	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019	(Decrease)				
Revenue							
Federal through state and local sources	\$ 236,385	\$ 288,431	\$ (52,046)				
State and local sources	4,132,378	4,039,869	92,509				
Contributions and other revenue	188,292	372,651	(184,359)				
Total revenue	4,557,055	4,700,951	(143,896)				
Expenses							
Instruction	2,371,735	2,309,143	62,592				
Exceptional	180	180	-				
Pupil personnel services	662,027	590,059	71,968				
Instructional staff training	-	3,198	(3,198)				
School district administration fee	97,551	74,680	22,871				
School administration	566,599	602,935	(36,336)				
Fiscal services	39,404	26,941	12,463				
Food service	165,503	172,217	(6,714)				
Transportation	89	-	89				
Operation of plant	738,616	721,855	16,761				
Maintenance of plant	15,461	15,110	351				
Community service	12,004	15,685	(3,681)				
Bond issuance costs	455,492	-	455,492				
	*=4 00=						

Pepin's primary funding sources come from Pepin's sponsor, the District School Board of Pasco County ("Sponsor"). Approximately 91% of this funding is revenue received by the Florida Education Finance Program ("FEFP") that is funded by the state of Florida. Calculation of FEFP revenues involves a funding formula based upon student enrollment data. Pepin serves a population of students on a full-time basis with a wide range of learning and learning related differences. Because of this population, each student at Pepin has an Individual Education Plan ("IEP"). The level of funding for each student is determined by the need or level of service each individual child requires. A representative from the sponsor, school staff, and each student's parent(s) or guardian(s) determine these levels jointly.

251,887

5,376,548

(819,493)

6,263

4,538,266

162,685

\$

245,624

838,282

(982,178)

Debt service interest

Change in net position

Total expenses

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Other revenue sources include, but are not limited to, the State of Florida Charter School Capital Outlay funds, IDEA, and Title I (Federal sourced) disbursements. Contributions and other revenues consist of fundraising revenue and donations, childcare services, and cafeteria revenues.

Pepin's largest expenditure is for instructional expenses, which account for approximately 44% of the total expenses for the 2019/2020 school year. The increase in instructional expenses of almost 3% can be attributed to the purchase of additional classroom technology as well as standard increases in instructional staff salaries and benefits. The largest increase in expenses compared to the prior year were bond issuance costs and debt service interest of \$455,492 and \$251,887, respectively, which relate to the financing and purchase of the school's new permanent campus location. Pupil personnel services also increased due increases in staffing needs. Other remaining expense categories are increased and decreased due to general economic financial needs of Pepin.

Governmental Funds

Pepin reported a total fund balance of \$6,852,520 at June 30, 2020, up from \$385,477 reported at June 30, 2019.

Budgetary Highlights

Pepin's budget was prepared and approved by Pepin's Board of Directors at the start of the 2019/2020 school year and was developed based on the anticipated revenues and expenditures and expected student enrollment.

Capital Assets

Assets acquired during the school year with a cost greater than Pepin's minimum capitalization threshold of \$750 were \$5,732,480. Depreciation expense in the government-wide financial statements was calculated utilizing the straight-line method and estimated useful lives of 3 years for leasehold improvements, 5 years for classroom equipment, 7 years for furniture and fixtures, and 30 to 39 years for buildings and land improvements. Total depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2020 was \$92,355 and the investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of June 30, 2020 is \$5,753,542. Additional information regarding Pepin's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Debt

At June 30, 2020, the school has an education facility revenue bond liability outstanding with a face value of \$11,365,000 and an origination date of January 30, 2020. Maturities of these bonds are as follows:

Series	Amount	Maturity Date
Series 2020A	\$4,865,000	January 1, 2040
Series 2020A	\$6,255,000	January 1, 2050
Series 2020B Taxable	\$245,000	January 1, 2024

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

In April 2020, Pepin borrowed \$660,700 under the Small Business Administration's ("SBA") Paycheck Protection Program. The loan matures in April 2022. Pepin may apply for forgiveness of the loan in whole or in part. The loan may be forgiven if the loan proceeds are used for the purposes defined in the agreement.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

On January 30, 2020, Pepin purchased property to serve as its new permanent campus in New Port Richey. Pepin has removed certain structures and is currently renovating other existing buildings and equipping three additional educational, administrative, and ancillary facilities on the campus. Construction has a target date of completion of December 3, 2020. Upon completion, Pepin will move its operations in December and will operate at the new school facility beginning January 2021.

Enrollment for the 2020/2021 school year is expected to increase to 342, as a result of increased capacity at the new campus that is expected to open midway through the 2020/2021 school year. Pepin estimates that revenues and expenditures from school operations will increase modestly because of the increases in general economic factors.

Pepin is confident that it has the staff and other resources in place to deliver and provide first-rate educational services and is actively seeking new ways to provide a higher level of education as efficiently as possible by managing its cost and being innovative in its approach to providing educational services.

Requests for Information

This financial report is to provide a general overview of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc.'s finances. Questions concerning any of the information contained in this report should be addressed to CFO, Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc., 9804 Little Road, New Port Richey, Florida, 34654.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Statement of Net Position June 30, 2020

ASSETS Cash \$ 1,232,49 Restricted eash and eash equivalents 6,636,228 Accounts receivable 3,735 Prepaid expenses 49,527 Total current assets 7,959,483 Capital assets 2,030,582 Land 870,250 Buildings and improvements 2,030,582 Leasehold improvements 65,45,16 Furniture, fistures, and equipment 144,300 Construction in progress 2,828,74 Accountated depreciation 774,940 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 8,74,556 Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Account appayable \$ 7,258 Accound on interest 243,901 Accrued on interest 243,901 Accrued other expenses 329,689 Accrued other expenses 329,689 Total current liabilities due within one year: 12,032,526 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,032,526 Revenue bonds payable 33,101 <th></th> <th>Governmental Activities</th>		Governmental Activities
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,636,228 Accounts receivable 9,535 Other current assets 49,527 Total current assets 7,959,483 Capital assets 870,250 Land 870,258 Buildings and improvements 654,516 Leasehold improvements 654,516 Leasehold improvements 2,838,744 Construction in progress 2,838,744 Accumulated depreciation 6,528,482 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total assets 8,745,86 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Accumulate depreciation 5,753,542 Accumulate depreciation 3,728 Accumulate depreciation 3,728 Accumulate depreciation 3,728 Accumulate depreciation 3,728<		
Accounts receivable 9,535 Prepaid expenses 31,724 Other current assets 49,527 Total current assets 7,959,483 Capital assets 870,259 Land 870,259 Buildings and improvements 65,161 Embildings and improvements 65,161 Furniture, fixures, and equipment 144,300 Construction in progress 2,828,744 Accountlated depreciation 6,528,482 Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total assets 8,74,564 Accrued construction costs 447,456 Accrued opayroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued interest 329,689 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 12,003,256 Notes payable 339,689 Total current liabilities 12,003,256 Notes payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 12,003,256 Notes payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payab		
Prepaid expenses 31,724 Other current assets 7,959,483 Total current assets 2,959,483 Capital assets 870,250 Land 870,250 Buildings and improvements 645,166 Leasehold improvements 144,300 Construction in progress 6,528,482 Accumulated depreciation 774,940 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,733,542 Total assets 1,724,940 Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Account accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued onestruction costs 487,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 262,705 Revenue bonds payable, net 1,200,325 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 33,969 Total liabilities 1,203,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 1,203,256 Notes payable 1,203,256		
Other current assets 49.527 Total current assets 7,595,485 Capital assets 870,505 Land 870,505 Buildings and improvements 654,516 Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 144,390 Construction in progress 2,898,744 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Accured construction costs 87,456 Accrued operation 243,901 Accrued operation 243,901 Accrued operation 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 12,003,256 Notes payable 1,203,256 Notes payable		
Total current assets 7,959,483 Capital assets 870,250 Buildings and improvements 658,4516 Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 144,300 Construction in progress 2,888,744 Accumulated depreciation 6,528,482 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,733,542 Total assets 13,713,025 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITIOS LiABILITIES AND NET POSITIOS LACCOUNTS payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,070 Accrued interest 262,070 Accrued other expenses 8,348 None-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 331,011 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 1,203,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 1,203,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 1,203,267 Total liabilitie		
Capital assets 870,250 Buildings and improvements 2,030,582 Leasehold improvements 654,516 Funiture, fixtures, and equipment 144,390 Construction in progress 2,887,744 Accumulated depreciation 774,940 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total sasets 313,713,025 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LACCOUNTS payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 87,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 329,689 Total current liabilities due within one year: \$ 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position \$ 14,033,624 Net position \$ 1,294,552 Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted 7,071		
Land 870,250 Buildings and improvements 2,030,82 Leasehold improvements 654,516 Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 144,300 Construction in progress 2,828,74 Accumulated depreciation (774,940) Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,735,542 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LACcounts payable 8 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 262,705 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Total current liabilities 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 1,203,256	Total current assets	7,959,483
Buildings and improvements 2,030,582 Leasehold improvements 654,516 Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 144,300 Construction in progress 2,288,744 Accumulated depreciation (774,940) Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LACCOUNTS payable 87,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,090,038 Restricted for: 1,294,552 Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (7,071,113) Total net position 320,509		070.270
Leasehold improvements 654,516 Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 144,890 Construction in progress 2,888,744 Accumulated depreciation (774,940) Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation \$ 13,713,025 LLABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Labilities Accounts payable Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 1,2003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Urnestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 144,90 Construction in progress 2,828,744 Accumulated depreciation (774,940) Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total assets LABILITIES AND NET POSITION Labilities Accounts payable 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Total current liabilities due within one year: 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Urnestricted (707,113) Total net position (302,099)		
Construction in progress 2,828,744 6,528,482 6,528,482 Accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 Total assets \$ 13,713,025 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Liabilities Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 908,038 Restricted for: 1,294,552 Debt service 1,294,552 Urnestricted 7,071,113 Total net position 3(30,599)		
Accumulated depreciation 6,528,482 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,542 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LiABILITIES AND NET POSITION Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 1,204,352 Total liabilities 1,403,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 908,038 Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted 7,071,113 Total net position 320,509		
Accumulated depreciation (74,940) Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,753,42 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Labilities Accounts payable 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 2 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 1,4033,624 Notes payable 1,4033,624 Total liabilities 1,504,535 Restricted for: 1,294,535 Debt service 1,294,535 Obst service 1,294,535 Unrestricted 7,071,13 Total net position 3,00,599	Construction in progress	
Total assets 5,753,542 LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Liabilities Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 226,809 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Notes payable, net 1,203,256 Total liabilities 1,203,256 Total liabilities 1,203,256 Pet position 1,203,256 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,080,038 Restricted for: 1,294,525 Unrestricted 7,071,13 Total net position 30,00,090		
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Liabilities Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 25,005 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 11,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 908,038 Restricted for: \$ 1,294,552 Unrestricted 1,707,113 Total net position (707,113)		
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Liabilities Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 262,705 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year:		
Liabilities Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 29,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-termdebt: \$ 331,011 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: \$ (908,038) Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Total assets	\$ 13,713,025
Accounts payable \$ 7,258 Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: \$ 29,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: \$ 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position \$ (908,038) Restricted for: \$ (908,038) Debt service \$ (294,552) Unrestricted \$ (707,113) Total net position \$ (320,599)		
Accrued construction costs 847,456 Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year:		
Accrued payroll 243,901 Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 0 Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Accrued interest 262,705 Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Restricted for: (908,038) Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Accrued other expenses 8,348 Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Notes payable 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Non-current liabilities due within one year: 329,689 Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 12,334,267 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Notes payable 329,689 Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 2003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 14,033,624 Net position Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Accrued other expenses	8,348
Total current liabilities 1,699,357 Long-term debt: 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 331,011 Notes payable 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Non-current liabilities due within one year:	
Long-term debt: 12,003,256 Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Notes payable	329,689
Revenue bonds payable, net 12,003,256 Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Restricted in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Total current liabilities	1,699,357
Notes payable 331,011 12,334,267 Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Restricted in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Long-term debt:	
Total liabilities 12,334,267 Net position 14,033,624 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Revenue bonds payable, net	12,003,256
Total liabilities 14,033,624 Net position (908,038) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Notes payable	331,011
Net position (908,038) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		12,334,267
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (908,038) Restricted for: 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Total liabilities	14,033,624
Restricted for: 1,294,552 Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Net position	
Restricted for: 1,294,552 Debt service 1,294,552 Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	-	(908,038)
Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)		
Unrestricted (707,113) Total net position (320,599)	Debt service	1,294,552
Total net position (320,599)	Unrestricted	
<u> </u>	Total net position	
	Total liabilities and net position	\$ 13,713,025

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2020

		Expenses	,	Charges for Services	Operating Grants and Contributions	Capital Grants and Contributions	Re Cha P Gov	(Expense) wenue and inge in Net osition - ernmental activities
Governmental activities:								_
Instruction	\$	2,371,735	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$	(2,371,735)
Exceptional		180		-	-	-		(180)
Pupil personnel services		662,027		-	131,290	-		(530,737)
School district administration fee		97,551		-	-	-		(97,551)
School administration		566,599		-	-	-		(566,599)
Fiscal services		39,404		-	-	-		(39,404)
Food service		165,503		8,222	73,809	-		(83,472)
Transportation		89		-	-	-		(89)
Operation of plant		738,616		-	-	-		(738,616)
Maintenance of plant		15,461		-	-	-		(15,461)
Community service		12,004		17,950	-	-		5,946
Bond issuance costs		455,492		-	-	-		(455,492)
Debt service interest		251,887		-	-	-		(251,887)
Total governmental activities		5,376,548		26,172	205,099	-		(5,145,277)
General revenues								
Federal sources passed through lo	cal	school district						31,286
State and local sources								4,132,378
Contributions and other revenue								14,405
Related party contributions								147,715
Total general revenues								4,325,784
Change in net position								(819,493)
Net position at beginning of year								498,894
Net position at end of year							\$	(320,599)

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund Financial Statements

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds June 30, 2020

	Go	wernmental
		Funds
ASSETS		
Cash	\$	1,232,469
Restricted cash		6,636,228
Accounts receivable		9,535
Prepaid expenses		31,724
Other current assets		49,527
Total assets	\$	7,959,483
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities		
Accounts payable	\$	7,258
Accrued construction costs		847,456
Accrued payroll		243,901
Accrued expenses		8,348
Total liabilities		1,106,963
Fund balance		
Nonspendable prepaid expenses and other current assets		81,251
Restricted		6,636,228
Unassigned		135,041
Total fund balance	-	6,852,520
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$	7,959,483

A Charter School and Component Unit of the

District School Board of Pasco County

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position June 30, 2020

Total fund balance of governmental funds		\$ 6,852,520
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because	»:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Capital assets at year end consist of:		
•	,528,482	
	(774,940)	
·		5,753,542
Accrued general long-term debt interest expenses are not financial uses and, therefore, are not		
reported in the governmental funds.		(262,705)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly are not reported in the governmental funds.		
Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:		
Bonds payable (11,	,365,000)	
	(638,256)	
Note payable	(660,700)	
	-	(12,663,956)
Total net position of governmental activities		\$ (320,599)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the

District School Board of Pasco County

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds Year Ended June 30, 2020

	General Fund	Special Revenue Fund	D	ebt Service Fund	Capital Project Fund	Go	Total overnmental Funds
Revenues							
Federal sources passed through							
local school district	\$ -	\$ 236,385	\$	-	\$ -	\$	236,385
State and local sources	3,931,280	-		201,098	-		4,132,378
Contributions and other revenue	40,577	-		-	-		40,577
Related party contributions	147,715	-		-	-		147,715
Total revenues	4,119,572	236,385		201,098	-		4,557,055
Expenditures							
Instruction	2,309,944	-		-	-		2,309,944
Pupil personnel services	530,737	131,290		-	-		662,027
School district administration fee	97,551	-		-	-		97,551
School administration	525,449	31,286		-	-		556,735
Facilities acquision and							
construction	-	-		-	5,729,576		5,729,576
Fiscal services	39,404	-		-	-		39,404
Food service	74,370	73,809		-	-		148,179
Transportation	89	-		-	-		89
Operation of plant	738,616	-		-	-		738,616
Maintenance of plant	15,169	-		-	-		15,169
Community service	12,004	-		-	-		12,004
Bond issuance costs	-	-		455,492	-		455,492
Debt service principal	100,000	-		-	-		100,000
Total expenditures	4,443,333	236,385		455,492	5,729,576		10,864,786
Other financing sources (uses)							
Proceeds from long-term debt -							
bond issuance	-	-		11,365,000	-		11,365,000
Premium on bond issuance	-	-		649,074	-		649,074
Proceeds from long-term debt -							
note payable	660,700	-		-	-		660,700
Proceeds from short-term debt -							
note payable	100,000	-		-	-		100,000
Transfers in	6,030,104	-		-	5,729,576		11,759,680
Transfers out		-		(11,759,680)	-		(11,759,680)
	6,790,804	-		254,394	5,729,576		12,774,774
Change in fund balance	6,467,043	-		-	-		6,467,043
Fund balance at beginning of year	385,477	-			-		385,477
Fund balance at end of year	\$ 6,852,520	\$ 	\$		\$ -	\$	6,852,520

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities June 30, 2020

Change in fund balance - total governmental funds	\$	6,467,043
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:		
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those costs over the life of the assets. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. Expenditures for capital assets \$ 5,732,480)	
Less current year depreciation (92,35)	5)	5,640,125
Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds. However, the payment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.		100,000
Proceeds from long-term debt is an other financing source in the governmental funds. However, the receipt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount by which long-term debt increased in the current period.		
Bonds payable (11,365,000))	
Premium on bonds payable (649,074 Notes payable (760,700 Notes payab	_	(12 774 774)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds: Amortization of bond premium 10,818 Current year change in accrued interest (262,702)		(12,774,774)
Change in net position - governmental activities	\$	(819,493)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 1 – Reporting Entity

Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. ("Pepin") is a not-for-profit corporation formed under the laws of the state of Florida on November 25, 2013. Pepin operates a Florida charter school at one campus in Pasco County, Florida.

The governing body of Pepin is a not-for-profit corporation board of directors composed of no less than three members.

The general operating authority for the Pepin is contained in Section 228.056, Florida Statutes. Pepin operates under a charter of the sponsoring school district, the District School Board of Pasco County ("District"). Pepin's current charter is effective until June 30, 2029. The charter may be renewed at the end of the contract term provided that the program review demonstrates that Pepin's purpose has been successfully accomplished. At the end of the term of the charter, the District may choose not to renew the charter under grounds specified in the charter, in which case the District is required to notify Pepin in writing at least 90 days prior to such action. During the term of the charter, the District may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown. In the event of termination of the charter, any property purchased by Pepin with public funds and any unencumbered public funds revert to the District. Pepin is considered a component unit of the District School Board of Pasco County and, for financial reporting purposes, is required to follow generally accepted accounting principles applicable to state and local governmental units.

Criteria for determining if other entities are potential component units of Pepin that should be reported with Pepin's general purpose financial statements are identified and described in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's ("GASB") *Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards*, Sections 2100 and 2600.

The application of these criteria provides for identification of any entities for which Pepin is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with Pepin are such that exclusion would cause Pepin's general purpose financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on these criteria, no component units are included within the reporting entity of Pepin.

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation – Pepin's basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by GASB. Accordingly, both government-wide (reporting on Pepin as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting on the governmental funds only) are presented. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements present only governmental activities. Pepin has no business-type activities.

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Financial Statements

In the government-wide statement of net position, Pepin's governmental activities are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and other obligations. Pepin's net position is reported in three parts (as applicable): invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The government-wide statement of activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of Pepin's functions. The functions are also supported by general government revenues (funding from the sponsoring school board). The statement of activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and operating grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary grants.

The net costs, by function, are normally covered by general revenue funding from the sponsoring school district.

The government-wide financial statement focus is more on the sustainability of Pepin as an entity and the change in Pepin's financial position resulting from the current year's activities.

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

Pepin's financial transactions are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures.

The individual generic fund type in Pepin's financial statements is a governmental fund. The focus of the governmental fund's measurement (in the fund statements) is on determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than on net income.

Pepin utilizes the following governmental funds:

General Fund – Accounts for all financial activity not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund – Accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources and grants that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specific purpose and to provide a single source of accountability for all the monies received.

Debt Service Fund – Accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for state capital outlay funding that is legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes, such as acquisition or construction of facilities or other capital assets.

For purposes of these financial statements, the above funds are major funds.

Current accounting guidance defines the different types of fund balances that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes and requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below:

Nonspendable fund balance is associated with items such as inventories, prepaid expenses, long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned).

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal vote of the District (Pepin's highest level of decision-making authority).

Assigned fund balance is intended to be used by Pepin for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for Pepin's general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Pepin's policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance, restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year by adjusting journal entries.

Basis of Accounting – The basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual – Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual – The fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year-end. When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for federal, state, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, are recognized when due.

Budgetary Basis Accounting – Budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. During the fiscal year, expenditures were controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries and benefits, purchased services, materials and supplies, and capital outlay).

Cash – Cash consists of demand deposits with commercial banks. From time to time, cash balances may exceed federally insured limits. Management believes the risk of loss is remote.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable and Allowance – Accounts receivable are stated at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Management's determination of the allowance is based on an evaluation of past collection history. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. An allowance for accounts receivable is considered unnecessary by management as of June 30, 2020.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets – Advanced payments to vendors for expenses that are applicable to future accounting periods.

Capital Assets – Expenditures for general capital assets acquired for general school purposes are reported in the governmental funds that financed the acquisition. The capital assets acquired are reported at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by Pepin as assets that are used in operations and have useful lives that extend beyond a single accounting period. Capital assets acquired during the year with a cost greater than Pepin's minimum capitalization threshold of \$750 are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

30 - 39 years
7 years
5 years
3 years

Bond Issuance Costs – Bond issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining revenue bond financing were expensed in the year of bond issuance.

Bond Premiums – Premiums on revenue bonds payable incurred in connection with obtaining revenue bond financing are presented as an increase in revenue bonds payable on the accompanying statement of net position. Bond premiums are amortized over the life of the related bonds and are recorded as a reduction of bond service interest in the accompanying statement of activities.

Revenue Sources – Revenues for current operations are received primarily from the District pursuant to the funding provisions included in Pepin's charter.

In accordance with the funding provisions of the charter and Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, Pepin reports the number of full-time equivalent ("FTE") students and related data to the District. Under provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, the District reports the number of FTE students and related data to the Florida Department of Education ("FDOE") for funding through the Florida Education Finance Program ("FEFP"). Funding for Pepin is adjusted during the year to reflect the revised calculations by the FDOE under the FEFP and the actual weighted FTE students reported by Pepin during the designated FTE student survey periods.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The basic amount of funding through the FEFP under Section 1011.62 is the product of the (1) unweighted FTE, multiplied by (2) the cost factor for each program, multiplied by (3) the base student allocation established by the legislature. Additional funds for exceptional students who do not have a matrix of services are provided through the guaranteed allocation designated in Section 1011.62(1)(e)(2), Florida Statutes. For the 2019/2020 school year Pepin reported 326.00 unweighted FTE.

FEFP funding may also be adjusted as a result of subsequent FTE audits conducted by the Auditor General pursuant to Section 1010.305, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-1.0453, Florida Administrative Code (FAC). Schools are required to maintain auditable records and the following documentation for three years or until the completion of an FTE audit:

Attendance and membership documentation (Rule 6A-1.044, FAC)

Teacher certificates and other certification documentation (Rule 6A-1.0503, FAC)

Procedural safeguards for weighted programs (Rule 6A-6.03411, FAC)

Evaluation and planning documents for weighted programs (Sections 1011.62(1)(e), Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-03411, FAC)

Pepin receives federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs. This assistance is generally received based on applications submitted to and approved by various granting agencies. For federal awards in which a claim to these grant proceeds is based on incurring eligible expenditures, revenue is recognized to the extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred. These funds are accounted for in the special revenue fund.

Pepin receives charter school capital outlay funding from the District. The amount received under this program is based on Pepin's actual and projected student enrollment during the year. Funds received under this program may only be used for lawful capital outlay expenditures and are accounted for in the debt service fund.

Additional revenues consist of miscellaneous donations, lunch receipts, rental income, fundraising activities, contributions, and other revenue.

Concentration of Revenue Sources – Approximately 96% of Pepin's revenue is derived from grants from the federal government passed through the State of Florida Department of Education and state and local funds passed through the District, which are renewable every 10 years. The level of Pepin's operations and program services may be impacted, or segments discontinued if funding is not renewed.

Allocation of Indirect Costs – Depreciation expense in the government-wide financial statements is allocated to a function based on the function's usage of the related capital asset.

Leases – Rent expense on operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the leases commencing with the date of possession.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income taxes – Pepin is a not-for-profit organization exempt from income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made in these basic financial statements. Pepin has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). Pepin is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. Management believes Pepin met the requirements to maintain their tax-exempt status and have no income subject to unrelated business income tax; therefore, no provision for income taxes has been provided in these financial statements. The income tax returns for the past three years are subject to examination by taxing authorities and may change upon examination.

Use of estimates – The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Newly adopted accounting pronouncement

During the year ended June 30, 2020, Pepin implemented GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. Issued April 2018, this Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. This Statement also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The required disclosures have been added to Note 5.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, *Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance*. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders considering the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. The effective dates of certain provisions contained in certain pronouncements are postponed by one year while others are postponed by 18 months.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, *Leases*. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the effective date of this Statement by 18 months, or Pepin's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Earlier application is encouraged. The Statement is to be applied retroactively; existing leases are to be recognized and measured based on the facts and circumstances of the lease in the period of implementation of Statement No. 87, not inception of the lease. Pepin is currently evaluating the impact of this Statement on its financial statements.

Note 3 – Restricted Cash

At June 30, 2020, restricted cash is held by Pepin's trustee, Wilmington Trust, as required by the 2020 bond agreements. Restricted cash is to be used for future debt service and construction project costs, and as of June 30, 2020, consists of the following:

Debt service requirements	\$ 1,294,552
Project construction requirements	 5,341,676
	\$ 6,636,228

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 4 – Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Balance						Balance		
	June	30, 2019		Additions	Reductions		Jur	ne 30, 2020	
Governmental activities									
Land	\$	-	\$	870,250	\$	-	\$	870,250	
Buildings and land improvements		-		2,030,582		-		2,030,582	
Leasehold improvements		654,516		-		-		654,516	
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment		141,486		2,904		-		144,390	
Construction in progress		_		2,828,744				2,828,744	
		796,002		5,732,480		-		6,528,482	
Less accumulated depreciation									
Buildings and land improvements		-		-		-		-	
Leasehold improvements		582,363		72,152		-		654,515	
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment		100,222		20,203				120,425	
		682,585		92,355				774,940	
	\$	113,417	\$	5,640,125	\$	_	\$	5,753,542	

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities	
Instruction	\$ 64,695
Exceptional	180
School administration	9,864
Food service	17,324
Operation of plant	292
	\$ 92,355

Construction in progress is reported at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to construction. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use. Included in the statement of net position at June 30, 2020, are accrued construction costs of \$847,456. There was no capitalized interest on construction projects during the year ended June 30, 2020.

Construction in progress consists of costs related to the acquisition, renovation, and construction of a permanent campus facility in New Port Richey. The total cost of the new campus is estimated to be approximately \$10 million. Pepin has entered into a construction contract for \$6.9 million with a general contractor to renovate existing structures and otherwise construct the new campus. As of June 30, 2020, approximately \$4 million is outstanding on the construction contract.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 5 – Debt

Notes Payable

In October 2019, to cover short-term operating costs, Pepin entered into a note payable with Pepin Academies Foundation, Inc. ("PAF"), a related entity, in the amount of \$100,000 with a maturity date of April 2020. In March 2020, Pepin repaid the loan to PAF. No interest was charged on the loan.

In April 2020, Pepin borrowed \$660,700 under the Small Business Administration's ("SBA") Paycheck Protection Program. The loan agreement requires monthly payments of approximately \$37,000, which includes both principal and interest at 1% per annum beginning in November 2020. The loan matures in April 2022. Pepin may apply for forgiveness of the loan in whole or in part. The loan may be forgiven if the loan proceeds are used for the purposes defined in the agreement. Management believes that Pepin will meet the requirements for loan forgiveness.

Notes payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Balance			Balance		
Maturity	June 30, 2019	Additions	Reductions	June 30, 2020		
Note payable - PAF 3/1/2020	\$ -	\$ 100,000	\$ (100,000)	\$ -		
Note payable - SBA 4/10/2022		660,700		660,700		
	\$ -	\$ 760,700	\$ (100,000)	\$ 660,700		

Educational Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

On January 30, 2020, the Florida Development Finance Corporation ("FDFC") issued the following educational facility revenue bonds: \$11,120,000 Nontaxable Education Facility Revenue Bonds (Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. Project) Series 2020A, \$245,000 Taxable Education Facility Revenue Bonds (Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. Project) Series 2020B. Proceeds from the bond issuance were loaned to the school to finance the cost of acquiring and renovating the Pasco campus educational facilities.

Details of the bonds outstanding at year end are as follows:

	Educational Facility Revenue Bonds							
	Series 2020A	Series 2020B Taxable						
Origination date	January 30, 2020	January 30, 2020						
Balance	\$11,120,000	\$245,000						
Maturity/interest	\$4,865,000 due January 1, 2040 @ 5%	\$245,000 due January 1, 2024 @ 5%						
	\$6,255,000 due January 1, 2050 @ 5%							

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 5 – Debt (Continued)

Bonds payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Bala	ince					Balance
	June 30), 2019	 Additions	Re	ductions	Ju	ne 30, 2020
Revenue bonds payable, Series 2020A	\$	-	\$ 11,120,000	\$	-	\$	11,120,000
Revenue bonds payable, Series 2020B Taxable			 245,000				245,000
		-	11,365,000		-		11,365,000
Current portion		-	_		-		-
Premium			649,074		(10,818)		638,256
	\$		\$ 12,014,074	\$	(10,818)	\$	12,003,256

The revenue bonds payable contain certain financial covenants beginning with the year ending June 30, 2021, that require, among other things, maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.10 and to maintain, as of June 30 and December 31 each year, at least 45 days cash on hand.

Debt Service Requirements

Following is a summary of the future annual debt service requirements at June 30, 2020:

	Re	venu	e Bonds Paya	ble	Notes Pa			Payable			
Year ending June 30,	Principal		Interest		Total	Total Prin		Interest		Total	
2021	\$ -	\$	522,474	\$	522,474	\$	329,689	\$	4,955	\$	334,644
2022	-		568,250		568,250		331,011		5,506		336,517
2023	185,000		568,250		753,250		-		-		-
2024	190,000		559,000		749,000		-		-		-
2025	200,000		549,500		749,500		-		-		-
2026 - 2030	1,160,000		2,587,250		3,747,250		-		-		-
2031 - 2035	1,480,000		2,266,500		3,746,500		-		-		-
2036 - 2040	1,895,000		1,856,750		3,751,750		-		-		-
2041 - 2045	2,420,000		1,333,000		3,753,000		-		-		-
2046 - 2050	3,835,000		665,250		4,500,250						
	\$ 11,365,000	\$	11,476,224	\$	22,841,224	\$	660,700	\$	10,461	\$	671,161

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 5 – Debt (Continued)

Interest

Accrued interest activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Bal	ance					E	Balance	
	June 3	80, 2019	A	Additions	Redu	ctions	June 30, 2020		
Notes payable	\$	-	\$	1,468	\$	-	\$	1,468	
Bonds payable				261,237				261,237	
	\$	_	\$	262,705	\$	_	\$	262,705	

Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 is \$262,705.

Note 6 – Schedule of Federal, State, and Local Revenue Sources

The following is a schedule of federal, state, and local revenue sources and amounts for the year ended June 30, 2020:

District School Board of Pasco County	
FEFP funds	\$ 1,517,367
ESE guaranteed	1,730,361
Supplemental academic instruction	82,407
Class size reduction funds	325,255
Safe Schools	16,626
Discretionary local effort	96,104
Discretionary millage	74,915
Total funds compression	7,119
Discretionary lottery	329
Instructional materials	24,612
Digital classrooms allocation	1,206
Mental health	7,738
Reading allocation	14,206
Capital outlay	201,098
Federal via Florida Department of Education	236,385
Food service	8,222
Contributions and other revenue	65,390
Related party contributions	147,715
	\$ 4,557,055

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 7 – Risk Management Program

Workers' compensation coverage, health and hospitalization, general liability, professional liability, and property coverage is provided through purchased commercial insurance with minimum deductibles for each line of coverage. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the commercial coverage.

Note 8 – Related Party Transactions

The Pepin Academies, Inc. ("Academies") is a not-for-profit corporation that operates a charter school in Hillsborough County, Florida. Academies is related to Pepin by shared management and fundraising support from PAF.

PAF was formed to promote and raise funds for the Pepin Academies' schools. During the year ended June 30, 2020, Pepin received \$147,715 in contributions from PAF.

Certain shared management payroll expenses are paid by Academies and repaid by Pepin. During the year ended June 30, 2020, Pepin paid approximately \$101,280 related to this expense.

At June 30, 2020, Pepin had no amounts owing to the Academies or to PAF.

Note 9 – School Employees Benefit Plan

Pepin maintains a cash or deferred profit-sharing plan (Plan) for eligible employees. Employees may contribute to the Plan up to the lesser of 75% of their compensation or the annual limit as defined by the Internal Revenue Service. Pepin may, but is not required to, make discretionary matching contributions to the Plan. During the year ended June 30, 2020, Pepin made discretionary matching contributions to the Plan totaling \$26,382.

Note 10 – Operating Leases

Pepin has an operating lease for its facility, expiring December 31, 2020. Pepin recognized lease expense of approximately \$330,616 for the year ended June 30, 2020 related to this lease. Future minimum annual lease payments at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Year ending June 30, 2021 \$ 165,308

Note 11 – Contingencies

In the normal course of operations, the School may become a defendant in various legal actions. Many of the School's risks are covered by insurance, but some are not. As a charter school that is subject to the laws relating to Florida public schools, the School will rely upon sovereign immunity caps for claims made against it. Some matters may not be covered by insurance, in whole or in part, or subject to sovereign immunity caps, and may be a liability of the School if settled adversely. The ultimate resolution of any matters existing at year end is not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements.

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Notes to Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2020

Note 11 – Contingencies (Continued)

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak ("COVID-19") a "Public Health Emergency of International Concern" and on March 11, 2020, declared COVID-19 a pandemic. The spread of COVID-19 appears to be altering the behavior of businesses and people in a matter that is having negative effects on local, regional, and global economies. The impact of COVID-19 could negatively impact Pepin's operations. Any quarantines or other disruptions to Pepin's operations may adversely impact Pepin's revenues, ability to provide services, and ultimately its operating results. Pepin has been significantly impacted by disruptions in its learning environment, such as remote learning mandates and social distancing requirements when remote learning is no longer compulsory. The extent to which COVID-19 could impact Pepin will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with confidence at this time.

Note 12 – Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated all events subsequent to the statement of net position date of June 30, 2020 through August 31, 2020, which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued. Management determined there are no subsequent events that require disclosure or recognition.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund (Unaudited) Year Ended June 30, 2020

		Budgeted	Amo	ounts	(Actual Budgetary	Variance from Final Budget Positive	
				Final	- '	Basis)	(Negative)	
Revenues						·		
State and local sources	\$	3,895,418	\$	3,931,280	\$	3,931,280	\$ -	
Contributions and other revenue		38,450		40,577		40,577	-	
Related party contributions		152,000		147,715		147,715	-	
Total revenues		4,085,868		4,119,572		4,119,572	-	
Expenditures								
Instruction		2,058,499		2,309,944		2,309,944	-	
Pupil personnel services		558,136		530,737		530,737	-	
Instructional staff training		5,000		-		-	-	
School district administration fee		77,908		97,551		97,551	-	
School administration		688,057		525,449		525,449	-	
Fiscal services		30,000		39,404		39,404	-	
Food service		56,316		74,370		74,370	-	
Transportation		-		89		89	-	
Operation of plant		529,079		738,616		738,616	-	
Maintenance of plant		4,500		15,169		15,169	-	
Community service		41,480		12,004		12,004	-	
Debt service principal		-		100,000		100,000	-	
Total expenditures		4,048,975		4,443,333		4,443,333	-	
Other financing sources (uses)								
Proceeds from long-term debt - note payable		-		660,700		660,700	-	
Proceeds from short-term debt - note payable		-		100,000		100,000	-	
Transfers in		-		6,030,104		6,030,104	-	
		_		6,790,804		6,790,804	-	
Excess of revenues over expenditures		36,893		6,467,043		6,467,043	-	
Fund balance at beginning of year		385,477		385,477		385,477		
Fund balance at end of year	\$	422,370	\$	6,852,520	\$	6,852,520	\$ -	

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Special Revenue Fund (Unaudited) Year Ended June 30, 2020

		Budgeted	Ame	ounts		Actual (Budgetary	Variance f Final Bud Positive	get
			Final	Basis)		(Negative)		
Revenues								
Federal sources passed through local school								
district	\$	212,093	\$	236,385	\$	236,385	\$	-
State and local sources		42,000		-		-		-
Contributions and other revenue		100,000		-		-		
Total revenues		354,093		236,385		236,385		-
Expenditures								
Instruction		118,000		-		-		-
Pupil personnel services		136,093		131,290		131,290		-
School administration		-		31,286		31,286		-
Food service		100,000		73,809		73,809		
Total expenditures		354,093		236,385		236,385		_
Excess of revenues over expenditures		-		-		-		-
Fund balance at beginning of year		-				-		
Fund balance at end of year	\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Debt Service Fund (Unaudited) Year Ended June 30, 2020

	Budg	eted Am	ounts	Actual (Budgetary	Variance from Final Budget Positive
	Original		Final	Basis)	(Negative)
Revenues				•	
State and local sources	\$	- \$	201,098	\$ 201,098	\$ -
Total revenues		-	201,098	201,098	-
Expenditures					
Bond issuance costs		-	455,492	455,492	-
Total expenditures		-	455,492	455,492	-
Other financing sources (uses)					
Proceeds from long-term debt - bond issuance		-	11,365,000	11,365,000	-
Premium on bond issuance		-	649,074	649,074	-
Transfers out		-	(11,759,680)	(11,759,680)	-
		-	254,394	254,394	-
Excess of revenues over expenditures		-	-	-	-
Fund balance at beginning of year		-	-	_	
Fund balance at end of year	\$	- \$	-	\$ -	\$ -

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Pasco County Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Capital Project Fund (Unaudited) Year Ended June 30, 2020

		Budgeted	Amounts	Actual (Budgetary	Variance from Final Budget Positive
	0	riginal	Final	Basis)	(Negative)
Revenues					
State and local sources	\$	195,222	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total revenues		195,222	-	-	-
Expenditures					
Facilities acquision and construction		-	5,729,576	5,729,576	-
Operation of plant		195,222	-	-	<u>-</u> _
Total expenditures		195,222	5,729,576	5,729,576	-
Other financing sources (uses)					
Transfers in		-	5,729,576	5,729,576	-
		-	5,729,576	5,729,576	
Excess of revenues over expenditures		-	-	-	-
Fund balance at beginning of year		_	-	-	<u>-</u>
Fund balance at end of year	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. New Port Richey, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. ("Charter School"), a component unit of the District School Board of Pasco County, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Pepin's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Pepin's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pepin's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Pepin's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc.'s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Pepin's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Pepin's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Prida Guida Perez P.A.

Frida Gaida & Ferez

Tampa, Florida

August 31, 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Board of Directors Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. New Port Richey, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc., a component unit of the District School Board of Pasco County, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2020.

Auditors' Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*. Disclosures in that report, which is dated August 31, 2020, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires the name or official title of the entity be disclosed in this management letter. The official title of the entity is Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education is 4328.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' MANAGEMENT LETTER (Continued)

Financial Condition

Section 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedure and communicate whether or not Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. It is management's responsibility to monitor Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc.'s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by the same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7. and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. maintains on its website the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that Pepin Academies of Pasco County, Inc. maintained on its website the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statues.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material, but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of This Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the board of directors, applicable management, and the District School Board of Pasco County, and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Prida Guida Perez P.A.

Frida Gaida & Ferez

Tampa, Florida August 31, 2020